
LOS Banos
I til( ( los\nwcls oj ( alijOll1i£l. .

www.losbanos.org

AGENDA
PLANNING COMMISSION

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
520 J Street

Los Banos, California

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 27, 2019

If you require special assistance to attend or participate in this meeting, please call the
Planning Secretary @ (209) 827-7000 ext. 2431 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

The City of Los Banos complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990.
* * * * * * * ** * * * * * * *

Si requiere asistencia especial para atender 0 participar en esta junta por favor IIame a la oficina
de la Secretaria del Departamento de Planificacion al (209) 827-7000 ext. 2431

a 10 menos de 48 horas previas de la junta.

La Cuidad de Los Banos cumple con la Acta de Americanos con Deshabilidad (ADA) de 1990.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the meeting

and in the Community & Economic Development Department's office located at
City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, California during normal business hours.

In addition, such writings and documents may be posted on the City's website at www./osbanos.org.
* * * * * * * ** * * * * * * *

Cualquier escritura 0 los documentos proporcionaron a una mayoria del Comision de Planificacion
con respecto a cualquier articulo en este orden del dia sera hecho disponible para la

inspeccion publica en la reunion y en la oficina del Departamento de Comunidad y Desarrollo Economico
del City Hall, 520 J Street, Los Banos, California durante horas de oficina normales.

Ademas, tales escrituras y los documentos pueden ser anunciados en el website de la Ciudad en
www./osbanos.org.

1. CALL TO ORDER 7:00 PM

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. ROLL CALL: (Planning Commission Members)

Cates _, Dees _' Giuliani _' Higby _, Limon _, Spada _, Toscano_

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Los Banos Planning Commission Agenda - March 27, 2019 Page 1 of 3



Recommendation: Approve the agenda as submitted.

5. CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE ACTION MINUTES FOR THE
REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF FEBRUARY 27,2019

Recommendation: Approve the minutes as submitted.

6. PUBLIC FORUM: Members of the public may address the Commission on any
item of public interest that is within the jurisdiction of the Commission, including
agenda and non-agenda items. No action will be taken on non-agenda items.
Speakers are limited to a five (5) minute presentation.

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS: If You Challenge the Proposed Action as Described herein
in Court, You May Be Limited to Raising Only Those Issues You or Someone
Else Raised at the Public Hearing Described herein, or in Written
Correspondence, Delivered to the City at, or Prior to, the Public Hearing.

A. Public Hearing - To Consider a Recommendation to the Los Banos City
Council to Adopt an Ordinance Adding a New Article to Title 9 of Chapter 3
of the Los Banos Municipal Code Regarding Sidewalk Vending in Response
to Senate Bill 946.

1) Planning Commission Resolution No. 2019-04 - Recommending to the
City Council Adoption of an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of
Los Banos Amending Title 9 Chapter 3 of the Los Banos Municipal
Code Adding a New Article 45 to Create a Sidewalk Vending Program,
Amending Related Provisions of the Los Banos Municipal Code and
Making a Determination of Exemption under CEQA.

Recommendation: Receive staff report, open the public hearing, receive public comment,
close the public hearing, and adopt the resolution as submitted.

8. COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT REPORT

9. COMMISSIONER REPORTS

A. Cates

B. Dees

C. Giuliani

D. Higby

E. Limon

F. Spada

G. Toscano

Los Banos Planning Commission Agenda - March 27, 2019 Page 2 of 3



10. ADJOURNMENT

APPEAL RIGHTS AND FILING PROCEDURES

Any person dissatisfied with an act or determination of the Planning Commission may appeal such
act or determination to the Planning Commission by filling written notice with the Planning
Commission Secretary not later than five (5) business days (excluding holidays) after the day on
which the act or determination was made. An appeal must state the act or determination which is
being appealed, the identity of the applicant and his/her interest in the matter, and set forth in concise
statement(s) the reasons which render the Commission's decision unjustified or inappropriate. (Los
Banos Municipal Code Section 9-3.2326)

Concerning an action taken by the Planning Commission related to Chapter 2 Articles 1 through 17 of
the Los Banos Municipal Code "Subdivisions", if a subdivider or other affected property owner is
dissatisfied with any action of the Commission with respect to a tentative map or the nature and
extent of improvements recommended or required he/she may within fifteen (15) days after such
action appeal to the Planning Commission Secretary for a public hearing on the matter. An appeal
must state the action being appealed, identify the agenda item by agency number or project title, and
set forth in concise statement(s) the reasons for the appeal. (Los Banos Municipal Code Sections 9
2.807)

Appeals must be in writing and include the appellant's name and address and original signature. A
filing fee of $150.00 must accompany the notice of appeal.

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing agenda
was p ed on the City Hall bulleti boar~ not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.

Dated this 2200 day of March 2019

Los Banos Planning Commission Agenda - March 27, 2019 Page 3 of 3



CITY OF LOS BANOS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES

FEBRUARY 27, 2019

ACTION MINUTES - These minutes are prepared to depict action
taken for agenda items presented to the Planning Commission. For
greater detail of this meeting refer to the electronic media (CD
and/or audio) kept as a permanent record.

CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Cates called the Planning Commission Meeting to
order at the hour of 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The pledge of allegiance was led by Commissioner Higby.

ROLL CALL - MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION PRESENT: Planning
Commission Members John Cates, David Dees, Mona Giuliani, Thomas Higby III, Erik
Limon, and Tom Spada; Susan Toscano absent.

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Community & Economic Development Director Elms,
Associate Planner Rudy Luquin, Planning Technician Sandra Benetti, and City Attorney
William A. Vaughn.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF AGENDA. Motion by Spada, seconded by
Limon to approve the agenda as submitted. The motion carried by the affirmative action
of all Planning Commission Members present; Toscano absent.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE ACTION MINUTES FOR THE REGULAR
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF DECEMBER 12. 2018. Motion by Giuliani,
seconded by Spada to approve the minutes as submitted. The motion carried by the
affirmative action of all Planning Commission Members present; Toscano absent.

CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL OF THE ACTION MINUTES FOR THE SPECIAL
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF FEBRUARY 5. 2019. Motion by Spada,
seconded by Dees to approve the minutes as submitted. The motion carried by the
affirmative action of all Planning Commission Members present; Toscano absent.

PUBLIC FORUM: MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ADDRESS THE PLANNING
COMMISSION MEMBERS ON ANY ITEM OF PUBLIC INTEREST THAT IS WITHIN
THE JURISDICTION OF THE CITY; INCLUDES AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA
ITEMS. NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS. SPEAKERS ARE
LIMITED TO A FIVE (5) MINUTE PRESENTATION. DETAILED GUIDELINES ARE
POSTED ON THE COUNCIL CHAMBER INFORMATIONAL TABLE.

Chairperson Cates opened the public forum. No one came forward to speak and the
public forum was closed.



PUBLIC HEARING - TO CONSIDER A RECOMMENDATION TO THE LOS BANOS
CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH THE REGULATION
AND PROCESSING OF ACCESSORY DWELLING UNITS. Community & Economic
Development Director Elms presented the staff report, which included a PowerPoint
presentation.

Commissioner Dees inquired about the definition of an efficiency unit.

Community & Economic Development Director Elms responded that it is defined in the
definitions under Los Banos Municipal Code Section 9-3.3002 but refers to the
California Health & Safety Code.

City Attorney Vaughn spoke of size, bathroom, and kitchen requirements for efficiency
units.

Commissioner Spada inquired about staff's sense on garage conversions and parking.

Community & Economic Development Director Elms responded that the state has
prohibited us from legislating parking as a barrier and the state's position is that a
covered garage is not necessary.

City Attorney Vaughn spoke of garage conversions needing to replace the lost spaces
and non-garage conversions have to provide at least 1 off-street parking space.

Commissioner Dees inquired if permitted on-street parking would be considered.

City Attorney Vaughn responded that staff is not considering permitted on-street
parking, how staff is not anticipating huge demand of this type of housing, how Los
Banos typically has smaller lots with larger houses so that restricts many of these types
of opportunities from arising, and the state has pronounced what cities can do in
regards to parking.

City Attorney Vaughn suggested that "efficiency unit" be defined instead of referring to
Health & Safety Code.

Community & Economic Development Director Elms spoke of how casitas are going to
become more standard in newer development in the future.

There was discussion among Commissioners and staff regarding the difference
between accessory structures and accessory dwelling units.

Commissioner Higby inquired if detached ADUs must exist in perpetuity.

City Attorney Vaughn responded that an owner can demo or turn it into a different
accessory structure if codes allow for it.

Chairperson Cates opened the public hearing. KATHY BALLARD, Los Banos, spoke of
existing secondary living units in the College Greens area, stated that they didn't have



kitchens, and inquired if there are Building requirements to follow if owners want to
change that.

Community & Economic Development Director Elms confirmed there are Building
requirements to follow to add kitchens to ADUs.

Ms. Ballard inquired if a property owner can rent it out.

Community & Economic Development Director Elms responded that it can be rented out
as long the property owner lives in one of the units.

No one came forward to speak and the public hearing was closed.

Motion by Spada, seconded by Limon to adopt Planning Commission Resolution No.
2019-03 - Recommending to the City Council Adoption of an Ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Los Banos Amending Article 30 Chapter 3 of Title 9 of the Los
Banos Municipal Code Relating to Accessory Dwelling Units with the addition of the
definition of an efficiency unit. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all
Planning Commission Members present; Toscano absent.

CONSIDERATION OF APPOINTMENT OF A PLANNING COMMISSIONER AND AN
ALTERNATE TO THE TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE.

Motion by Dees to appoint Commissioner Limon to the Traffic Safety Committee. The
motion carried by the affirmative action of all Planning Commission Members present;
Toscano absent.

Motion by Limon to appoint Commissioner Spada as an alternate to the Traffic Safety
Committee. The motion carried by the affirmative action of all Planning Commission
Members present; Toscano absent.

COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT REPORT.
Community & Economic Development Director Elms reported that the Planning
Commissioners Academy will take place in Long Beach next week with lots of new and
exciting sessions.

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER REPORTS.

CATES: Thanked staff, spoke of how he is looking forward to the Planning
Commissioners Academy, welcomed the new Planning Commissioners, and thanked
the City Council and Finance Director for allowing the department to budget this
conference for Commissioners.

DEES: No report.

GIULIANI: Spoke of it being nice to see folks working together.

HIGBY: No report.



LIMON: Spoke of being happy to be back serving on the Planning Commission and
welcomed the newest Planning Commissioners.

SPADA: Thanked staff for the work on the ordinance and welcomed the newly
appointed and reappointed commissioners.

TOSCANO: Absent.

ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at the hour of 7:52 p.m.

APPROVED:

John Cates, Chairperson

ATTEST:

Sandra Benetti, Planning Technician



LOS Banos
At the ( rossroads of ( alifornia

TO:

FROM:

DATE:

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT

Chairman Cates and Planning Commissioners

Stacy Souza Elms, Community and Economic Development Director~

March 27,2019

TYPE OF REPORT: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Sidewalk Vending Ordinance

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission adopt Resolution 2019-_.

A Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Los Banos
Recommending to the City Council Adoption of an Ordinance Amending
Title 9 Chapter 3 of The Los Banos Municipal Code Adding a New Article
45 To Create a Sidewalk Vending Program, Amending Related Provisions
of The Los Banos Municipal Code, and Making A Determination of
Exemption Under CEQA

Background:

Legislation signed in September of last year by Gov. Jerry Brown limits California cities'
abilities to regulate street vending. Senate Bill 946 also known as the "Safe Sidewalk
Vending Act," went into effect January 1, 2019 and effectively nullifies our existing
regulations that prohibit sidewalk vending.

As of January 1, 2019, the City and other local jurisdictions that currently prohibit such
activities as pushcart vending and individuals who set up stands and or other equipment
on the city sidewalks to sell their wares, can no longer do so. However, SB 946 does
allow for cities to adopt some requirements regulating the time, place, and manner of
sidewalk vending, if the requirements are directly related to health, safety or welfare
concerns. SB 946 also is clear that "perceived community animus or economic



competition" are not valid health, safety, or welfare concerns to justify the imposition of
time, place, or manner restrictions.

SB 946 defines "sidewalk vendors" as any person who sells food or merchandise while
on a public sidewalk or other public pedestrian path (including public parks). The law
broadly defines "sidewalk vendors" to include those using a pushcart, wagon, or other
non-motorized conveyance, or from his or her person, while on a public sidewalk or
other pedestrian path. A sidewalk vendor may be "stationary" (operating from a fixed
location) or "roaming" (moving from place to place and stop only to complete a
transaction).

SB 946 includes the following elements:

• Invalidates all current local sidewalk vending regulations unless they are
consistent with SB 946.

• Cannot require sidewalk vendors to operate in specific parts of the public
right-of-way except when that restriction is directly related to objective health,
safety, or welfare concerns.

• Cannot prohibit sidewalk vendors from selling food or merchandise in a City
park. (Exception: stationary vendors can be prohibited if there is an exclusive
concessions agreement with a concessionaire for the sale of food or
merchandise in the park).

• Can adopt requirements regulating the time, place, and manner of sidewalk
vending in a park if the requirements are: directly related to objective health,
safety, or welfare; necessary to ensure the public's use and enjoyment of
natural resources and recreational opportunities; or necessary to prevent an
undue concentration of commercial activity that unreasonably interferes with
the scenic and natural character of the park.

• Cannot require sidewalk vendors to obtain consent/approval of any nearby
business to sell food or merchandise.

• Cannot restrict sidewalk vendors to operating only in a designated
neighborhood or area (Exception when that restriction is directly related to
objective health, safety, or welfare concerns).

• Can prohibit stationary vendors in areas zoned exclusively residential.
(Roaming vendors may not be prohibited in residential areas).

• Cannot restrict the overall number of sidewalk vendors permitted to operate
within City (Exception when that restriction is directly related to objective
health, safety, or welfare concerns).

• Can limit hours of operation that are not unduly restrictive. In nonresidential
areas, any limitations on the hours of operation for sidewalk vending shall not
be more restrictive than any limitations on hours of operation imposed on
other businesses or uses on the same street.

• Can adopt requirements to maintain sanitary conditions.
• Can adopt requirements to ensure compliance with ADA standards.
• Can require sidewalk vendors to obtain a permit for sidewalk vending and a

valid business license.



• Can require sidewalk vendors to possess a valid CDTFA seller's permit.
• Can require additional licenses from other agencies (ie Merced County Health

Dept.).
• Can prohibit sidewalk vendors in areas located around a certified farmers'

market or permitted swap meet.
• Can restrict or prohibit sidewalk vendors within the immediate vicinity of

area(s) designated for a temporary special permit.
• Can adopt additional requirements regulating the time, place, and manner of

sidewalk vending if the requirements are: directly related to objective health,
safety, or welfare concerns.

SB 946 also requires cities to cease criminal prosecution as an enforcement option for
sidewalk vending violations. A city can issue administrative citations for violations of its
sidewalk vending regulations and can impose higher administrative penalties for failure
to obtain the appropriate permits. If a city seeks to impose administrative fines, SB 946
requires there be a process for determining the person's ability to pay. Further, the
person must be informed of his or her right to request an "ability-to-pay determination."
Finally, if the person is successful in establishing that he or she is unable to pay, he or
she will only be required to pay 20 percent of the fine.

Discussion:

The City of Los Banos currently allows very limited use of public spaces such as
sidewalks and parks for commercial purposes. These regulations specify the licensing
and operation requirements for a "solicitor" (someone selling a service or product for
future delivery) or a "peddler" (someone who provides a product immediately upon
payment). This is commonly referred to as "door to door" sales. It is important to note
that the permitted transactions occur on private property, as the City does not allow
vending in parkways, on public sidewalks or in City parks.

Since sidewalk vending is prohibited in Los Banos, the City does not have regulations in
place to accommodate the state mandate to allow sidewalk vending. The regulations in
the proposed Ordinance are proposed to accommodate sidewalk vendors and their
equipment pursuant to the requirements of SB 946. Staff has worked closely with the
City Attorney's Office to comply with the state law, while also providing protections
against potential health and safety concerns that might be created by sidewalk vending
operations in the City.

The proposed regulations contained in the proposed Ordinance include the following:

• Requires an annual administrative permit to engage in sidewalk vending.
• Requires an indemnity agreement.
• Requires liability insurance.
• Prohibits sidewalk vending along sidewalks, pathways, courtyards, and

grounds adjacent to the buildings and facilities that make up the Los Banos
Community Center, the Los Banos City Hall, the Los Banos Courthouse, the



Los Banos Public Library, the Los Banos Police Station, the Los Banos Fire
Station(s), the Memorial Hospital Los Banos, and along the sidewalks of
Pacheco Boulevard, Mercey Springs Road, Badger Flat Road, Pioneer Road,
H Street from 2nd Street to Badger Flat Road, within the Los Banos Rail
Corridor and Canal Side Trails.

• Prohibits sidewalk vending within any roadway, median strip, or dividing
section.

• Restricts sidewalk vending in the vicinity of certified farmers' markets, swap
meets, special events, schools, churches, playgrounds, athletic fields.

• Restricts stationary sidewalk vendors from vending in areas zoned exclusively
residential.

• Restricts hours of operation.
• Requires proper trash disposal.
• Sets forth numerous health and safety operational requirements and

restrictions.

Although the issuance of a permit must be a ministerial action, the proposed ordinance
would require that a sidewalk vendor obtain and/or provide:

• A valid Merced County Department of Health Permit (for food vendors).
• A California Department of Tax and Fee Administration seller's permit.
• A City business license.
• Certificate of insurance.

Environmental impact:

The adoption of the proposed ordinance is covered by the "general rule" that the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) applies only to projects which have the
potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Staff's determination is that
it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed regulations
contained in the ordinance will have a significant effect on the environment. Therefore,
the adoption of the ordinance is not subject to CEQA.

Conclusion:

Under the new state regulations, it is permissible for the City to adopt regulations to
ensure the health and safety of the community to address potential impacts of sidewalk
vending. However, the tools for enforcement of violations of sidewalk vending
regulations (pursuant to SB 946) are limited to the issuance of administrative citations.
The proposed Ordinance addresses the mandated restrictions on penalties.

Staff believes that the proposed regulations are limited to "time, place and manner"
restrictions and will provide adequate protection of the health and safety of the
community. However, the limitations contained in SB 946 will make the enforcement of
the City's regulations extremely challenging.



Attachments:
Resolution
Proposed Draft Ordinance
58946
Public Hearing Notice



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
LOS BANOS RECOMMENDING TO THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPTION OF
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS
BANOS AMENDING TITLE 9 CHAPTER 3 OF THE LOS BANOS
MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING A NEW ARTICLE 45 TO CREATE A
SIDEWALK VENDING PROGRAM, AMENDING RELATED PROVISIONS
OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE, AND MAKING A
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA

WHEREAS, Senate Bill ("SB") 946 was signed into law on September 17, 2018
and became effective January 1, 2019.

WHEREAS, SB 946 limits city regulation of sidewalk vending to restrictions that
are directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concerns and prohibits
punishment for street vending-related violations unless it is through a civil fine.

WHEREAS, SB 946 recognizes that "California has an interest in the regulation
of traffic ... whether in ensuring the appropriate flow of traffic or in ensuring the safety of
pedestrians on the road or the sidewalk," and has acknowledged that there are
regulations that are directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concerns that a
city may adopt, which include, but are not limited to, regulations concerning hours of
operation, sanitation, sidewalk access, health and vendor permits, compliance with
other generally applicable laws, registration requirements, and interference with other
special events or permitted activities.

WHEREAS, As a result, the City desires to update its municipal code to establish
a sidewalk vending program which will govern sidewalk vendors operating within the
City and impose sidewalk vending regulations that are consistent with state law, while
maintaining regulations that are directly related to, and furthers, the objective health,
safety, and welfare of the City.

WHEREAS, the proposed ordinance is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference as Attachment A; and

WHEREAS, the proposed ordinance does not propose any changes to City
policies or regulations that would result in a direct or indirect physical environmental
impact; therefore it has been determined that the proposed ordinance is covered by the
general rule that the California Environmental Quality Act applies only to projects which
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment pursuant to CEQA
guidelines Section 15061 (b)(3) and is not subject to environmental review.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the
City of Los Banos does hereby recommend that the City Council of the City of Los



Banos consider and approve the attached Ordinance of The City Council of the City Of
Los Banos Adding a New Article 45 To Create a Sidewalk Vending Program, Amending
Related Provisions of The Los Banos Municipal Code, and Making A Determination of
Exemption Under CEQA

The foregoing Resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the Planning
Commission of the City of Los Banos held on the 27th day of March 2019, by Planning
Commissioner who moved its adoption, which motion was duly
seconded by Planning Commissioner and the Resolution
adopted by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

John Cates, Planning Commission Chairman

ATIEST:

Sandra Benetti, Planning Commission Secretary



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS AMENDING TITLE 9
CHAPTER 3 OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL CODE ADDING A NEW
ARTICLE 45 TO CREATE A SIDEWALK VENDING PROGRAM,
AMENDING RELATED PROVISIONS OF THE LOS BANOS MUNICIPAL
CODE, AND MAKING A DETERMINATION OF EXEMPTION UNDER
CEQA

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Senate Bill ("SB") 946 was signed into law on September 17, 2018
and became effective January 1, 2019.

WHEREAS, SB 946 limits city regulation of sidewalk vending to restrictions that
are directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concerns and prohibits
punishment for street vending-related violations unless it is through a civil fine.

WHEREAS, SB 946 recognizes that "California has an interest in the regulation
of traffic ... whether in ensuring the appropriate flow of traffic or in ensuring the safety of
pedestrians on the road or the sidewalk," and has acknowledged that there are
regulations that are directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concerns that a
city may adopt, which include, but are not limited to, regulations concerning hours of
operation, sanitation, sidewalk access, health and vendor permits, compliance with
other generally applicable laws, registration requirements, and interference with other
special events or permitted activities.

WHEREAS, As a result, the City desires to update its municipal code to establish
a sidewalk vending program which will govern sidewalk vendors operating within the
City and impose sidewalk vending regulations that are consistent with state law, while
maintaining regulations that are directly related to, and furthers, the objective health,
safety, and welfare of the City.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that the establishment of a sidewalk vending
program will benefit the City as a whole by facilitating entrepreneurship and providing
economic opportunity for people to support themselves and their families, and by
contributing to a diversity of food options and lively streets.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that the act of vending on sidewalks and
other areas of the public right-of-way also creates the potential for increased safety
hazards, such as, but not limited to, inhibiting the ability of disabled individuals and
other pedestrians to follow a safe path of travel; interfering with the performance of
police, firefighter, and emergency medical personnel services; encouraging pedestrians
to cross mid-block or stand in roadways to purchase food; and creating obstacles and
contributing to congestion for pedestrian, vehicle, and bicycle traffic.



WHEREAS, The City Council finds that restrictions on sidewalk vending are
needed to accommodate vendors and their equipment, while also safe-guarding the
flow of pedestrian movement on sidewalks and in the public right-of-way, and ensuring
no interference with the performance of police, firefighter, and emergency medical
personnel services.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that the regulation of vendors engaged in the
sale of food and food products will help to ensure that sidewalk vendors obtain all
necessary permits and comply with applicable sanitation, food preparation, and food
handling laws, and thereby will protect the public health and safety against health
problems such as food contamination, poor hygienic practices, and the threat of food
poisoning.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that regulations related to the collection and
disposal of trash or other debris generated by sidewalk vending are necessary to
ensure that such trash or debris is not left, thrown, discarded, or deposited on City
streets, sidewalks, pathways, gutters, or storm drains, or upon public or private lots, so
that the same might be or become a pollutant.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that restrictions on sidewalk vending in public
parks and trail ways are necessary to ensure the public's use and enjoyment of natural
resources and recreational opportunities, and to prevent an undue concentration of
commercial activity that would unreasonably interfere with the scenic and natural
character of these parks.

WHEREAS, The City Council finds that restrictions on sidewalk vending in
residential areas are necessary to ensure that such areas are protected from excessive
noise and traffic impacts while allowing economic opportunities for sidewalk vendors.

WHEREAS, The City Council adopts this Ordinance under the authority provided
in SB 946, and finds that the time, place, and manner regulations and requirements
provided herein are directly related to the City's purpose of protecting of the health,
safety, and welfare of its residents, businesses and visitors.

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Los Banos hereby finds and
determines that all of the above Recitals are true and correct and incorporates such
Recitals into this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LOS BANOS
DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Title 9, Chapter 3 of the Los Banos Municipal Code is hereby
amended to add a new Article 45, which shall read as follows:

"Article 45 Sidewalk Vending



Sec. 9-3.4500 Purpose.

(a) The purpose of this Article is to establish a sidewalk vendor permitting and
regulatory program that complies with Senate Bill 946. The provisions of this Article
allow the City to encourage small business activities by removing total prohibitions on
portable food stands and certain forms of solicitation while still permitting regulation and
enforcement of unpermitted sidewalk vending activities to protect the public's health,
safety and welfare.

(b) The City Council hereby finds that, to promote the health, safety and welfare,
restrictions on street vending are necessary to:

(1) Prevent interference with the performance of police, firefighter, and
emergency medical personnel services;

(2) Prevent interference with the flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic including
ingress into, or egress from, any residence, public building, or place of business, or from
the street to the sidewalk, by persons exiting or entering parked or standing vehicles;

(3) Provide reasonable access for the use and maintenance of sidewalks,
pathways, poles, posts, traffic signs or signals, hydrants, restrooms, trash receptacles,
firefighting apparatus, mailboxes, as well as access to locations used for public
transportation services; and

(4) Reduce exposure to the City from personal injury or property damage claims
and litigation.

Sec. 9-3.4510 Definitions.

The following words and phrases, whenever used in this Article, shall mean as
follows:

"Certified Farmers' Market" means a location operated in accordance with
Chapter 10.5 of Division 17 of the Food and Agricultural Code and any regulations
adopted pursuant to that chapter.

"Director" means the Community and Economic Development Director or the
Director's designee.

"Person" means one or more individuals, groups, businesses, business trusts,
companies, corporations, joint ventures, joint stock companies, partnership, entities,
associations, clubs, or organizations composed of two or more individuals (or the
manager, lessee, agent, servant, officer, or employee of any of them), whether engaged
in business, nonprofit, or any other activity.



"Roaming Sidewalk Vendor" means a sidewalk vendor who moves from place to
place and stops only to complete a transaction.

"Sidewalk Vendor" means a person who sells food or merchandise from a
pushcart, stand, display, pedal-driven cart, wagon, showcase, rack, or other non
motorized conveyance, or from one's person, upon a public sidewalk or other
pedestrian path.

"Stationary Sidewalk Vendor" means a sidewalk vendor who vends from a fixed
location.

"Swap Meet" means a location operated in accordance with Article 6 of Chapter 9
of Division 8 of the Business and Professions Code, and any regulations adopted
pursuant to that article.

"Temporary Special Permit" means a permit issued by the City for the temporary
use of, or encroachment on, the sidewalk or any other public area, including, but not
limited to, an encroachment permit, special event permit, block party, or temporary use
permit, for purposes including, but not limited to, City or privately sponsored parades,
street fairs, or street closures.

"Vend" or "Vending" shall mean the sale, offer for sale, soliciting, preparation,
display, barter, or exchange, of prepared, pre-packaged or unprepared, unpackaged
food or foodstuffs, beverages, goods, or merchandise of any kind.

"Vending Cart" means a pushcart, stand, display, pedal-driven cart, wagon,
showcase, rack, or other non-motorized conveyance used for vending, whether mobile
or stationary, that is not a vehicle as defined in the California Vehicle Code.

Sec. 9-3.4520 Permit Required.

(a) No person may conduct or engage in sidewalk vending in the City without
first obtaining and having in his or her possession a sidewalk vending permit issued by
the City in accordance with this Article. No permit granted herein shall confer any vested
right to any person or business for more than the permit period. All sidewalk vendors
subject to this Article shall comply with the provisions of this Article as they may be
amended hereafter.

(b) A sidewalk vending permit shall not be required for events permitted
pursuant to a lawfully issued temporary special permit.

Sec. 9-3.4530 Permit Application.

To apply for a sidewalk vending permit, a person must submit an application with
the Director or designee, accompanied by a nonrefundable processing fee in an amount



established by resolution of the City Council. The application shall be in a form
prescribed by the Director and shall contain the following:

(a) The legal name and current address and telephone number of the applicant;

(b) If the applicant is an agent of an individual, company, partnership,
corporation, or other entity, the name and business address of the principal;

(c) The name, address, and telephone number of the person who will be in
charge of any roaming sidewalk vendors, sidewalk vending activity and/or be
responsible for the person(s) working at the sidewalk vending cart;

(d) The name, address, and telephone number of all persons that will be
employed as roaming sidewalk vendors or at a sidewalk vending cart;

(e) The number of sidewalk vending carts the sidewalk vendor will operate within
the City under the permit;

(f) The day(s) and hours of operation the sidewalk vendor intends to operate at
such location(s);

(g) Whether the vendor intends to operate as a stationary sidewalk vendor or a
roaming sidewalk vendor and, if roaming, the intended path of travel;

(h) The dimensions of the sidewalk vendor's sidewalk vending cart(s), including
a picture of all sides of each sidewalk vending cart operating under the permit and any
signs that will be affixed thereto;

(i) If the sidewalk vendor is selling food, a description of the type of food to be
sold, whether such foods are prepared on site, whether such foods will require a heating
element inside or on the sidewalk vending cart for food preparation, and the type of
heating element, if any;

(j) If the sidewalk vendor is selling merchandise, a description of the
merchandise to be sold;

(k) If stationary, the sidewalk vendor shall provide a description of the proposed
vending location, including identification of major cross streets and the side of the street
on which vending will occur (if applicable), along with a photo or depiction of said
location.

(I) If roaming, the sidewalk vendor shall provide a sketch of the intended path of
travel.



(m) Proof the person possesses a valid California Department of Tax and Fee
Administration seller's permit which notes the City as a location or sub location, which
shall be maintained for the duration of the sidewalk vendor's permit;

(n) If the sidewalk vendor is selling food or food products, certification of
completion of a food handler course and proof of all required approvals and a copy of
the required health permit from the Merced County Department of Public Health;

(0) An acknowledgment that the sidewalk vendor will comply with all other
generally applicable local, State, and Federal laws;

(p) A certification that, to their knowledge and belief, the information contained
within the application is true;

(q) An agreement by the sidewalk vendor to defend, indemnify, release and hold
harmless the City, its City Council, boards, commissions, officers and employees from
and against any and all claims, demands, obligations, damages, actions, causes of
action, suits, losses, judgments, fines, penalties, liabilities, costs and expenses
(including without limitation attorney's fees, disbursements and court costs) of every
kind and nature whatsoever which may arise from or in any manner relate (directly or
indirectly) to the permit or the vendor's sidewalk vending activities. This indemnification
shall include, but not be limited to, damages awarded against the City, if any, costs of
suit, attorneys' fees, and other expenses incurred in connection with such claim, action,
or proceeding whether incurred by the permittee, City, and/or the parties initiating or
bringing such proceeding;

(r) An acknowledgement that use of public property is at the sidewalk vendor's
own risk, the City does not take any steps to ensure public property is safe or conducive
to the sidewalk vending activities, and the sidewalk vendor uses public property at their
own risk;

(s) An acknowledgement that the sidewalk vendor will obtain and maintain
throughout the duration of any permit issued under this Article insurance required by
this Article;

(t) Any other reasonable information regarding the time, place, and manner of
the proposed vending.

(u) Prior to the issuance of a sidewalk vendor permit, the applicant shall cause to
be filed with the Director a LiveScan background check, including a LiveScan
background check for all employees engaging in vending activities, conducted by the
California Department of Justice within the previous six (6) months of the application
date. The Director shall furnish each applicant with a LiveScan request form for use at
the Los Banos Police Department.



(v) No person shall engage in, conduct or carry on the business of a sidewalk
vendor unless there is on file with the City, in full force and effect at all times,
documents issued by an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of
California evidencing that the operator is insured (and naming the City as an additional
insured) under a liability insurance policy providing minimum coverage of One Million
and No/100ths ($1,000,000.00) Dollars for injury or death arising out of the sidewalk
vending activities. All insurance companies affording coverage shall be required to add
the City as an additional insured under their insurance policy. A certificate of insurance
and a copy of the policy endorsement shall be provided to the City prior to the issuance
of a sidewalk vendor permit.

(w) Prior to issuance of a sidewalk vendor permit, the applicant shall have any
vending cart to be used for vending inspected for safety by the Fire Department.

Sec. 9-3.4540 Criteria for Approval or Denial of Permit.

(a) Within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving a complete application, the
Director, or the Director's designee, may issue a sidewalk vendor permit, with
appropriate conditions, as provided for herein, if he or she finds based on all of the
relevant information that:

(1) The sidewalk vending activity will not unduly interfere with traffic or pedestrian
movement, or tend to interfere with or endanger the public peace or rights of nearby
residents to the quiet and peaceable enjoyment of their property, or otherwise be
detrimental to the public peace, health, safety or general welfare;

(2) The sidewalk vending activity will not unduly interfere with normal
governmental or City operations, threaten to result in damage or detriment to public
property, or result in the City incurring costs or expenditures in either money or
personnel not reimbursed in advance by the vendor;

(3) The sidewalk vending activity will not constitute a fire hazard, and all proper
safety precautions will be taken;

(4) The sidewalk vending activity will not require the diversion of police officers to
properly police the area of such activity as to interfere with normal police protection for
other areas of the City;

(5) The applicant has paid all previous administrative fines, completed all
community service, and completed any other alternative disposition associated in any
way with a previous violation of this Article;

(6) The applicant has not had a permit revoked within the past twelve (12)
months;

(7) The applicant's application contains all required information;



(8) The applicant has not made a materially false, misleading or fraudulent
statement of fact to the City in the application process;

(9) The applicant has satisfied all the requirements of this Article;

(10) The applicant has paid all applicable fees;

(11) The applicant is required to register under the provisions of California Penal
Code Section 290.

(12) Within three (3) years of the date of the application, the applicant has been
convicted in a court of competent jurisdiction or pled nolo contendere to any felony
offense involving the sale of a controlled substance specified in California Health and
Safety Code Sections 11054, 11055, 11056, 11057 or 11058, or at the time of
application is on probation or parole for any offenses set forth in this section for an
offense that was committed within three years of the date of the application.

(b) If the permit is denied, written notice of such denial and the reasons therefor
shall be provided to the applicant.

Sec. 9-3.4550 Permit Expiration and Renewal.

A sidewalk vending permit shall be valid for twelve (12) months from the date of
issuance and shall expire and become null and void on the anniversary of its issuance.
A person may apply for a permit renewal on a form provided by the City prior to the
expiration of his or her active sidewalk vending permit.

Sec. 9-3.4560 Permit Rescission.

The Director may rescind a permit issued to a sidewalk vendor for a fourth
violation or subsequent violation of this Article. A sidewalk vendor whose permit is
rescinded may apply for a new sidewalk vending permit upon the expiration of the term
of the rescinded permit.

Sec. 9-3.4570 Appeals.

The decision of the Director or designee may be appealed as provided by the
appeal procedure provided in Part 6 of Article 23 of this Chapter.

Sec. 9-3.4580 Permits Nontransferable.

A sidewalk vendor permit is nontransferable. Any change in ownership or
operation of a sidewalk vendor or sidewalk vending cart requires a new permit under
this Article.



Sec. 9-3.4590 Operating Requirements.

All sidewalk vendors shall comply with the following:

(a) No sidewalk vendor shall vend in any of the following locations:

(1) Upon or within any roadway, median strip, or dividing section.

(2) Along sidewalks, pathways, courtyards, and grounds adjacent to the
buildings and facilities that make up the Los Banos Community Center, the Los Banos
City Hall, the Los Banos Courthouse, the Los Banos Public Library, the Los Banos
Police Station, the Los Banos Fire Station(s), the Memorial Hospital of Los Banos, and
along the sidewalks of Pacheco Boulevard, Mercey Springs Road, Badger Flat Road,
Pioneer Road, H Street from 2nd Street to Badger Flat Road, within the Los Banos Rail
Corridor and Canal Side Trails.

(3) Within two hundred (200) feet of a permitted certified farmers' market, a swap
meet, or an area designated for a temporary special permit. This prohibition shall be
limited to the operating hours of the market or swap meet, or the limited duration of the
temporary special permit.

(4) Within three hundred (300) feet of the property line of any public or private
school grounds, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. each day that school is
in session.

(5) Within three hundred (300) feet from any place of worship or child care
center.

(6) Within one hundred (100) feet of a public picnic area, playground area,
playground equipment, or athletic field or court.

(7) Within four hundred (400) feet of another sidewalk vendor.

(8) Within twenty-five (25) feet of any street or alley intersection;

(9) Within ten (10) feet of a fire hydrant or other emergency facility.

(10) Within ten (10) feet of a curb that has been designated as a white, yellow,
green, blue, or red zone, or a bus zone.

(11) Within twenty (25) feet of any driveway approach or entrance to a parking
lot or parking garage.

(12) Within ten (10) feet of an entrance or exit of any building or structure.



(13) Within ten (10) feet of any public trash receptacle, bike rack, bench, bus
stop, or similar public use item.

(14) In any City parking lot.

(15) On private property without the consent of the property owner.

(b) Stationary sidewalk vendors shall not vend at any park where the City has
signed an agreement for concessions that exclusively permits the sale of food or
merchandise by a concessionaire.

(c) Stationary sidewalk vendors shall not vend in areas that are zoned
residential.

(d) No sidewalk vendor shall vend in a manner that blocks or obstructs the free
movement of pedestrians, bicycles, or vehicles. Sidewalk vendors must at all times
provide a clearance of not less than four (4) feet on all sidewalks or pedestrian areas so
as to enable persons to freely pass while walking, running, or using mobility assistance
devices;

(e) Sidewalk vending is permitted between the hours of 9:00a.m. - 7:00p.m.,
daily, except as follows:

(1) In nonresidential areas, the hours of operation shall not be more restrictive
than the hours of operation imposed on other businesses or uses located on the same
block.

(2) In public parks sidewalk vending shall be permitted only during hours open to
the public.

(f) Sidewalk vendors shall provide a trash receptacle for customers and ensure
proper disposal of customer trash. The trash receptacle must be large enough to
accommodate customer trash without resort to existing trash receptacles located on any
block for use by the general public.

(g) Prior to leaving any vending location, the sidewalk vendor shall pick up,
remove, and dispose of all trash generated by the vending operations or the vendor's
customers within a fifteen (15) foot radius of the vending location. Sidewalk vendors
shall not throw, deposit, or leave, or permit to be thrown, deposited, or left, any trash,
food, or other discarded or abandoned objects, in or upon any street, sidewalk, path,
gutter, storm drain, inlet, catch basin, or other drainage structure, or upon any public or
private lot of land in the City, so that the same might be or become a pollutant.

(h) Sidewalk vendors shall possess and display in plain view on the vending cart
and a valid sidewalk vending permit issued pursuant to this Article and if selling food a
valid health permit from Merced County Department of Public Health. Sidewalk vendors



shall possess at all times while vending any other permit required by any governmental
agency. A sidewalk vendor engaged in sidewalk vending shall wear, on their person,
identification with a picture and name issued by the City.

(i) Vending carts shall not be chained, fastened, or affixed at any time to any
building or structure, including but not limited to lampposts, parking meters, traffic
signals, fire hydrants, benches, bus shelters, trashcans, street signs, trees, or other
objects within the public-right of way. No vending cart shall become a permanent fixture
on the vending site or be considered an improvement to real property.

(j) Vending carts shall not be left unattended or stored on public property or
within the public right-of-way.

(k) Sidewalk vendors shall comply with all applicable state and local laws,
including without limitation state food handling, labeling, and preparation requirements;
fire codes and regulations; and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and other
disability access standards (both state and federal).

(I) No tables, chairs, fences, shade structures, balloons, flags, banners, on-site
furniture, or any freestanding signs shall be permitted in conjunction with the sidewalk
vendor's vending activities.

(m) The vendor shall not attach or use any water line, electrical line, or gas line
during vending operations.

(n) Exterior storage or display of refuse, equipment, materials, goods, wares, or
merchandise associated with the vendor is prohibited.

(0) No sound amplification equipment, music or live entertainment may be used
in conjunction with any sidewalk vendor sales.

(p) A Vending Cart shall not be wider than four (4) feet at its widest point
(exclusive of waste containers) and no longer than seven (7) feet at its longest point
(exclusive of waste containers). A canopy or other similar overhead cover may be used
but no portion of this cover (exclusive of vertical support poles or struts) shall be lower
than seven (7) feet above the sidewalk. Any and all vertical supports for this cover shall
be totally confined within the horizontal dimensions (width and length) of the Vending
Cart.

(r) Any power used in a Vending Cart shall be contained wholly within the Cart.
No cords, hoses, pipes, bottles, canisters, or other conductors or containers of power or
fuel shall extend from any source external to or detached from the Vending Cart while
the Vending Cart is in operation upon a City sidewalk.

Sec. 9-3.4100 Administrative Citations.



(a) A violation of this Article by a sidewalk vendor who has a valid sidewalk
vending permit from the City is punishable only by an administrative citation pursuant to
Chapter 11 Title 4 of this Code in amounts not to exceed the following:

(1) One hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation.

(2) Two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation within one year of the first
violation.

(3) Five hundred dollars ($500) for each additional violation within one year of
the first violation.

(b) A person engaged in sidewalk vending without a valid City sidewalk vending
permit is punishable by an administrative citation pursuant to Chapter 11 Title 4 of this
Code in amounts not to exceed the following, in lieu of the amounts set forth in
paragraph (a):

(1) Two hundred fifty dollars ($250) for a first violation.

(2) Five hundred dollars ($500) for a second violation within one year of the first
violation.

(3) One thousand dollars ($1,000) for each additional violation within one year of
the first violation.

(4) Upon proof of a valid sidewalk vending permit issued by the City, the
administrative citations set forth in this paragraph shall be reduced to amounts set forth
in paragraph (a).

(c) A violation of this Article shall not be punishable as an infraction or
misdemeanor. No person alleged to have violated the provisions herein shall be subject
to arrest except when otherwise permitted by law.

(d) Failure to pay an administrative citation issued pursuant to this section shall
not be punishable as an infraction or misdemeanor. Additional fines, fees, assessments,
or any other financial conditions beyond those authorized herein shall not be assessed.

(e) When assessing administrative citations pursuant to this section, the hearing
officer shall take into consideration the person's ability to pay the fine. The City shall
provide the person with notice of his or her right to request an ability-to-pay
determination and shall make available instructions or other materials for requesting an
ability-to-pay determination. The person may request an ability-to-pay determination at
adjudication or while the judgment remains unpaid, including when a case is delinquent
or has been referred to a comprehensive collection program.



(f) If the person meets the criteria described in subdivision (a) or (b) of
Government Code Section 68632, the City shall accept, in full satisfaction, twenty (20)
percent of an administrative citation imposed pursuant to this Article.

(g) The hearing officer may allow a person to complete community service in lieu
of paying the total administrative citation, may waive the administrative citation, or may
offer an alternative disposition."

Section 2. Sub Section 9-3.3606(a) (4) of Article 36, Chapter 3 Title 9 of the Los
Banos Municipal Code is amended to read as follows:

H(4) Except as set forth in Section 9-3.3608(b) no mobile food vendor shall be
located or maintained on public property, including a public sidewalk or other pedestrian
path, bicycle pathways, walking trails, public parks or inconsistent with any other City
regulations;"

Section 3. To the extent that the terms and provisions of this Ordinance may be
inconsistent or in conflict with the terms or conditions of any prior City ordinance,
motion, resolution, rule or regulation governing the same subject, the terms of this
Ordinance shall prevail with respect to the subject matter thereof and such inconsistent
or conflicting provisions of prior ordinances, motions, resolutions, rules or regulations
are hereby repealed.

Section 4. If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause
or phrase added by this Ordinance, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional or invalid or ineffective by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council hereby declares that it would have
passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase
thereof irrespective of the fact that anyone or more subsections, subdivisions,
paragraphs, sentences, clauses or phrases are declared unconstitutional, invalid or
ineffective.

Section 5. The proposed amendments to the Los Banos Municipal Code do not
propose any changes to City policies or regulations that would result in a direct or
indirect physical environmental impact; therefore it has been determined that this
ordinance amendment is covered by the general rule that the California Environmental
Quality Act applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant
effect on the environment pursuant to CEQA guidelines section 15601 (b)(3) and is not
subject to environmental review.

Section 6. This Ordinance shall go into effect and be in full force and operation
thirty (30) days after its final passage and adoption. The City Clerk shall certify to the
adoption of this Ordinance and cause the same to be posted and published once within
fifteen days after passage and adoption as may be required by law; or, in the alternative
the City Clerk may cause to be published a summary of this Ordinance and a certified
copy of the text of this Ordinance shall be posted in the Office of the City Clerk five days



prior to the date of adoption of this Ordinance; and, within fifteen days after adoption,
the City Clerk shall cause to be published, the aforementioned summary and shall post
a certified copy of this Ordinance, together with the vote for and against the same, in the
Office of the City Clerk.

Introduced by Council Member and seconded by Council Member
_____ on the __ day of , 2019.

Passed on the __ day of , 2019 by the following vote:

AYES: Council Members
NOES:
ABSENT:

APPROVED:

Michael Villalta, Mayor

ATTEST:

Lucille L. Mallonee, City Clerk



SUMMARY OF SB 946

CITY IS ALLOWED TO: CITY IS PROHIBITED FROM:

Regulating sidewalk vendors except In

accordance with Sections 51038 and 51039 of
the Govt Code.
Requiring sidewalk vendors to operate In

specific parts of the public right-of-way except
when that restriction IS directly related to
objective health, safety, or welfare concerns

Adopt requirements regulating the time, place, Prohibiting sidewalk vendors from selling food
and manner of sidewalk vending in a park if or merchandise in a City park. (Exception:
the requirements are: directly related to stationary vendors can be prohibited if there is
objective health, safety, or welfare; necessary an exclusive concessions agreement with a
to ensure the public's use and enjoyment of conCeSSIOnaire for the sale of food or
natural resources and recreational merchandise in the park)
opportunities; or necessary to prevent an undue
concentration of commercial activity that
unreasonably interferes with the scenic and
natural character of the park.

Requiring sidewalk vendors to obtain
consent/approval of any nearby business to sell
food or merchandise

Prohibit stationary vendors In areas zoned Restricting sidewalk vendors to operating only
exclusively residential. (Roaming vendors may In a designated neighborhood or area
not be prohibited in residential areas). (Exception when that restriction is directly

related to objective health, safety, or welfare
concerns).
Restricting the overall number of sidewalk
vendors pennitted to operate within City
(Exception when that restriction is directly
related to objective health, safety, or welfare
concerns).

Adopt additional requirements regulating the
time, place, and manner of sidewalk vending if
the requirements are: directly related to
objective health, safety, or welfare concerns.
Limit hours of operation that are not unduly
restrictive. In nonresidential areas, any
limitations on the hours of operation for
sidewalk vending shall not be more restrictive
than any limitations on hours of operation
imposed on other businesses or uses on the
same street.



Adopt requirements to maintain sanitary
conditions
Adopt requirements to ensure compliance with
ADA standards
Require sidewalk vendors to obtain a permit
for sidewalk vending and a valid business
license
Require sidewalk vendors to possess a valid
CDTFA seller's permit
Require additional licenses from other agencies
(ie Merced County Health Dept.)
Prohibit sidewalk vendors III areas located
around a certified farmers' market or permitted
swap meet
Restrict or prohibit sidewalk vendors within
the immediate vicinity of area(s) designated for
a temporary special permit

SB 946 allows the assessment of penalties for violations of the Sidewalk Vending Program as
follows:

• 1st violation - Administrative fine not exceeding $100.
• 2nd violation - Administrative fine not exceeding $200 within one year of the first
violation.
• 3rd or more violations - Administrative fine not exceeding $500 within one year of the
first violation.
• The City may rescind a permit issued to a sidewalk vendor for the term of that permit
upon the fourth violation.

Fines for vending without sidewalk vending permit, per SB 946, is provided below:

• 1st violation - Administrative fine not exceeding $250.
• 2nd violation - Administrative fine not exceeding $500 within one year of the first
violation.
• 3rd or more violations - Administrative fine not exceeding $1,000 within one year of
the first violation.
• Upon proof of a valid permit issued by the City, the administrative fines shall be
reduced to 20%.



Senate Bill No. 946

CHAPTER 459

An act to add Chapter 6.2 (commencing with Section 51036) to Part 1 of Division 1 of Title 5 of
the Government Code, relating to sidewalk vendors.

[ Approved by Governor September 17, 2018. Filed with Secretary of
State September 17, 2018. ]

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST

SB 946, Lara. Sidewalk vendors.

Existing law authorizes a local authority, by ordinance or resolution, to adopt requirements for
the public safety regulating any type of vending and the time, place, and maImer of vending from
a vehicle upon a street.

This bill would prohibit a local authority, as defined, from regulating sidewalk vendors, except in
accordance with the provisions of the bill. The bill would provide that a local authority is not
required to adopt a new program to regulate sidewalk vendors if the local authority has
established an existing program that substantially complies with the provisions of the bill. The
bill would apply these provisions to a chartered or general law city, county, or city and county.

The bill would require a local authority that elects to adopt a sidewalk vending program to,
among other things, not require a sidewalk vendor to operate within specific patis of the public
right-of-way, except when that restliction is directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare
concerns, and not restrict sidewalk vendors to operate only in a designated neighborhood or area,
except as specified. The bill would authorize a local authority to, by ordinance or resolution,
adopt additional requirements regulating the time, place, and manner of sidewalk vending, as
specified, if the requirements are directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concerns.
The bill would also authorize a local authority to prohibit sidewalk vendors in areas located
within the immediate vicinity of a pennitted certified farnlers' market and a pennitted swap
meet, as specified, and to restrict or prohibit sidewalk vendors within the immediate vicinity of
an area designated for a temporary special pennit issued by the local authority, as specified. A
violation would be punishable only by an administrative fine, as specified, pursuant to an ability
to-pay detennination, and proceeds would be deposited in the treasury of the local authority.

The bill would require the dismissal of any criminal prosecutions under any local ordinance or
resolution regulating or prohibiting sidewalk vendors that have not reached final judgment. The
bill would also authorize a person who is cunently serving, or who completed, a sentence, or



who is subject to a fine, for a conviction of a misdemeanor or infraction for sidewalk vending, as
specified, to petition for dismissal of the sentence, fine, or conviction.

Existing constitutional provisions require that a statute that limits the right of access to the
meetings of public bodies or the writings of public officials and agencies be adopted with
findings demonstrating the interest protected by the limitation and the need for protecting that
interest.

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect.

DIGEST KEY
Vote: majority Appropriation: no Fiscal Committee: no Local Program: no

BILL TEXT
THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1.
(a) The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:

(1) Sidewalk vending provides impOliant entrepreneurship and economIc development
oppOliunities to low-income and immigrant communities.

(2) Sidewalk vending increases access to desired goods, such as culturally significant food and
merchandise.

(3) Sidewalk vending contributes to a safe and dynamic public space.

(4) The safety and welfare of the general public is promoted by encouraging local authorities to
suppOli and properly regulate sidewalk vending.

(5) The safety and welfare of the general public is promoted by prohibiting criminal penalties for
violations of sidewalk vending ordinances and regulations.

(6) This act applies to any city, county, or city and county, including a chmier city. The
criminalization of small business entrepreneurs, and the challenges that those entrepreneurs face
as a result of a criminal record, are matters of statewide concern. FU1iher, unnecessary ban-iers
have been erected blocking aspiring entrepreneurs from accessing the fonnal economy, hanning
California's economy in the process, and disrupting the regulation of business, which is a matter
of statewide concern. Moreover, California has an interest in the regulation of traffic, a matter of
statewide concern, whether in ensuring the appropriate flow of traffic or in ensuring the safety of
pedestrians on the road or the sidewalk.

(b) lt is the intent of the Legislature to promote entrepreneurship and suppOli immigrant and low
income communities.

SEC. 2.
Chapter 6.2 (commencing with Section 51036) is added to Pmi I of Division I of Title 5 of the

Government Code, to read:



CHAPTER 6.2. Sidewalk Vendors
51036.
For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions apply:

(a) "Sidewalk vendor" means a person who sells food or merchandise from a pushcari, stand,
display, pedal-driven cart, wagon, showcase, rack, or other nonmotorized conveyance, or from
one's person, upon a public sidewalk or other pedestrian path.

(b) "Roaming sidewalk vendor" means a sidewalk vendor who moves from place to place and
stops only to complete a transaction.

(c) "Stationary sidewalk vendor" means a sidewalk vendor who vends from a fixed location.

(d) "Local authority" means a chartered or general law city, county, or city and county.

51037.
(a) A local authority shall not regulate sidewalk vendors except in accordance with Sections

51038 and 51039.

(b) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to affect the applicability of Part 7 (commencing
with Section 113700) of Division 104 of the Health and Safety Code to a sidewalk vendor who
sells food.

(c) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to require a local authority to adopt a new program
to regulate sidewalk vendors if the local authority has established an existing program that
substantially complies with the requirements in this chapter.

51038.
(a) A local authority may adopt a program to regulate sidewalk vendors in compliance with this

section.

(b) A local authority's sidewalk vending program shall comply with all of the following
standards:

(1) A local authority shall not require a sidewalk vendor to operate within specific paris of the
public right-of-way, except when that restriction is directly related to objective health, safety, or
welfare concems.

(2) (A) A local authority shall not prohibit a sidewalk vendor from selling food or merchandise
in a park owned or operated by the local authority, except the local authority may prohibit
stationary sidewalk vendors from vending in the park onl y if the operator of the park has signed
an agreement for concessions that exclusively pelll1its the sale of food or merchandise by the
conCeSSIOnaire.

(B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), a local authority may adopt additional requirements
regulating the time, place, and manner of sidewalk vending in a park owned or operated by the
local authOlity if the requirements are any of the following:

(i) Directly related to objective health, safety, or welfare concems.



(ii) Necessary to ensure the public's use and enjoyment of natural resources and recreational
oppoliunities.

(iii) Necessary to prevent an undue concentration of commercial activity that umeasonably
interferes with the scenic and natural character of the park.

(3) A local authority shall not require a sidewalk vendor to first obtain the consent or approval of
any nongovemmental entity or individual before he or she can sell food or merchandise.

(4) (A) A local authority shall not restrict sidewalk vendors to operate only in a designated
neighborhood or area, except when that restriction is directly related to objective health, safety,
or welfare concems.

(B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), a local authority may prohibit stationary sidewalk
vendors in areas that are zoned exclusively residential, but shall not prohibit roaming sidewalk
vendors.

(5) A local authority shall not restrict the overall number of sidewalk vendors pennitted to
operate within the jurisdiction of the local authority, unless the restriction is directly related to
objective health, safety, or welfare concems.

(c) A local authority may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt additional requirements regulating
the time, place, and manner of sidewalk vending if the requirements are directly related to
objective health, safety, or welfare concems, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

(1) Limitations on hours of operation that are not unduly restrictive. In nonresidential areas, any
limitations on the hours of operation for sidewalk vending shall not be more restrictive than any
limitations on hours of operation imposed on other businesses or uses on the same street.

(2) Requirements to maintain sanitary conditions.

(3) Requirements necessary to ensure compliance with the federal Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990 (Public Law 101-336) and other disability access standards.

(4) Requiring the sidewalk vendor to obtain from the local authority a permit for sidewalk
vending or a valid business license, provided that the local authority issuing the pennit or
business license accepts a Califomia driver's license or identification number, an individual
taxpayer identification number, or a municipal identification number in lieu of a social security
number if the local authority otherwise requires a social security number for the issuance of a
permit or business license, and that the number collected shall not be available to the public for
inspection, is confidential, and shall not be disclosed except as required to administer the pennit
or licensure program or comply with a state law or state or federal court order.

(5) Requiring the sidewalk vendor to possess a valid Califomia Depatiment of Tax and Fee
Administration seller's pelmit.

(6) Requiring additional licenses from other state or local agencies to the extent required by law.

(7) Requiring compliance with other generally applicable laws.



(8) Requiring a sidewalk vendor to submit infomlation on his or her operations, including, but
not limited to, any of the foIIowing:

(A) The name and cun'ent mailing address of the sidewalk vendor.

(B) A descliption of the merchandise offered for sale or exchange.

(C) A celiification by the vendor that to his or her knowledge and belief, the infonnation
contained on the fonn is true.

(D) The Califomia seller's permit number (Califomia Department of Tax and Fee Administration
sales tax number), if any, of the sidewalk vendor.

(E) If the sidewalk vendor is an agent of an individual, company, partnership, or corporation, the
name and business address of the principal.

(d) Notwithstanding subdivision (b), a local authority may do both of the following:

(l) Prohibit sidewalk vendors in areas located within the immediate vicinity of a pemlitted
celiified fanners' market or a pennitted swap meet during the limited operating hours of that
celiified fanners' market or swap meet. A "certified fanners' market" means a location operated
in accordance with Chapter 10.5 (commencing with Section 47000) of Division 17 of the Food
and Agticultural Code and any regulations adopted pursuant to that chapter. A "swap meet"
means a location operated in accordance with Article 6 (commencing with Section 21660) of
Chapter 9 of Division 8 of the Business and Professions Code, and any regulations adopted
pursuant to that article.

(2) Restrict or prohibit sidewalk vendors within the immediate vicinity of an area designated for
a temporary special pennit issued by the local authority, provided that any notice, business
inten'uption mitigation, or other rights provided to affected businesses or propeliy owners under
the local authority's temporary special permit are also provided to any sidewalk vendors
specifically pel111itted to operate in the area, if applicable. For purposes of this paragraph, a
temporary special permit is a pennit issued by the local authority for the temporary use of, or
encroachment on, the sidewalk or other public area, including, but not. limited to, an
encroachment pennit, special event pennit, or temporary event pennit, for purposes including,
but not limited to, filming, parades, or outdoor concerts. A prohibition of sidewalk vendors
pursuant to this paragraph shall only be effective for the limited duration of the temporary
special pennit.

(e) For purposes of this section, perceived community animus or economic competition does not
constitute an objective health, safety, or welfare concem.

51039.
(a) (1) A violation of a local authority's sidewalk vending program that complies with Section
51038 is punishable only by the following:

(A) An administrative fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation.

(B) An administrative fine not exceeding two hundred doIIars ($200) for a second violation
within one year of the first violation.



(C) An administrative fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for each additional
violation within one year of the first violation.

(2) A local authority may rescind a pennit issued to a sidewalk vendor for the tenn of that pennit
upon the fOUlih violation or subsequent violations.

(3) (A) If a local authority requires a sidewalk vendor to obtain a sidewalk vending pennit from
the local authority, vending without a sidewalk vending pennit may be punishable by the
following in lieu of the administrative fines set forth in paragraph (1):

(i) An administrative fine not exceeding two hundred fifty dollars ($250) for a first violation.

(ii) An administrative fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for a second violation
within one year of the first violation.

(iii) An administrative fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000) for each additional
violation within one year of the first violation.

(B) Upon proof of a valid pel111it issued by the local authOlity, the administrative fines set forth
in this paragraph shall be reduced to the administrative fines set forth in paragraph (1),
respectively.

(b) The proceeds of an administrative fine assessed pursuant to subdivision (a) shall be deposited
in the treasury of the local authority.

(c) Failure to pay an administrative fine pursuant to subdivision (a) shall not be punishable as an
infraction or misdemeanor. Additional fines, fees, assessments, or any other financial conditions
beyond those authorized in subdivision (a) shall not be assessed.

(d) (1) A violation of a local authority's sidewalk vending program that complies with Section
51038, or a violation of any rules or regulations adopted prior to January 1, 2019, that regulate or
prohibit sidewalk vendors in the jurisdiction of a local authority, shall not be punishable as an
infraction or misdemeanor, and the person alleged to have violated any of those provisions shall
not be subject to arrest except when permitted under law.

(2) Notwithstanding any other law, paragraph (1) shall apply to all pending criminal prosecutions
under any local ordinance or resolution regulating or prohibiting sidewalk vendors. Any of those
criminal prosecutions that have not reached final judgment shall be dismissed.

(e) A local authority that has not adopted rules or regulations by ordinance or resolution that
comply with Section 51037 shall not cite, fine, or prosecute a sidewalk vendor for a violation of
any rule or regulation that is inconsistent with the standards described in subdivision (b) Section
51038.

(f) (l) When assessing an administrative fine pursuant to subdivision (a), the adjudicator shall
take into consideration the person's ability to pay the fine. The local authority shall provide the
person with notice of his or her right to request an ability-to-pay detennination and shall make
available instructions or other materials for requesting an ability-to-pay detennination. The
person may request an ability-to-pay determination at adjudication or while the judgment



remains unpaid, including when a case is delinquent or has been refeITed to a comprehensive
collection program.

(2) If the person meets the criteria described in subdivision (a) or (b) of Section 68632, the local
authority shall accept, in full satisfaction, 20 percent of the administrative fine imposed pursuant
to subdivision (a).

(3) The local authority may allow the person to complete community service in lieu of paying the
total administrative fine, may waive the administrative fine, or may offer an alternative
disposition.

(g) (1) A person who is currently serving, or who completed, a sentence, or who is subject to a
fine, for a conviction of a misdemeanor or infraction for sidewalk vending, whether by trial or by
open or negotiated plea, who would not have been guilty of that offense under the act that added
this section had that act been in effect at the time of the offense, may petition for dismissal of the
sentence, fine, or conviction before the trial cOUli that entered the judgment of conviction in his
or her case.

(2) Upon receiving a petition under paragraph (1), the court shall presume the petitioner satisfies
the criteria in paragraph (1) unless the party opposing the petition proves by clear and convincing
evidence that the petitioner does not satisfy the criteria. If the petitioner satisfies the criteria in
paragraph (1), the court shall grant the petition to dismiss the sentence or fine, if applicable, and
dismiss and seal the conviction, because the sentence, fine, and conviction are legally invalid.

(3) Unless requested by the petitioner, no hearing is necessary to grant or deny a petition filed
under paragraph (1).

(4) If the court that originally sentenced or imposed a fine on the petitioner is not available, the
presiding judge shall designate another judge to rule on the petition.

(5) Nothing in this subdivision is intended to diminish or abrogate any rights or remedies
otherwise available to the petitioner.

(6) Nothing in this subdivision or related provisions is intended to diminish or abrogate the
finality of judgments in any case not falling within the purview of this chapter.

SEC. 3.
The Legislature finds and declares that Section 2 of this act, which adds Section 51038 to the
Government Code, imposes a limitation on the public's right of access to the meetings of public
bodies or the writings of public officials and agencies within the meaning of Section 3 of Article
I of the California Constitution. Pursuant to that constitutional provision, the Legislature makes
the following findings to demonstrate the interest protected by this limitation and the need for
protecting that interest:

The Legislature finds and declares that in order to protect the privacy of a sidewalk vendor with
regard to his or her Califomia driver's license or identification number, individual taxpayer
identification number, or municipal identification number, when that number is collected in lieu
of a social security number for purposes of the issuance of a pem1it or business license, it is
necessary that the sidewalk vendor's number be confidential, except as provided in this act.





LOS Banos
I til( ( I( S' '0 ul (u ( a1UonJ;a

COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Date: March 15, 2019

Regarding: Notice of Public Hearing

Proposal: Sidewalk Vending Ordinance

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a Public Hearing will be held by the Los Banos
Planning Commission to consider and make a recommendation to the Los Banos City
Council to adopt a new Article to Tile 9 of Chapter 3 of the Los Banos Municipal Code
regarding sidewalk vending in response to SB 946.

A PUBLIC HEARING on this matter will be held at the next scheduled meeting of the
Los Banos Planning Commission on Wednesday, March 27, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Council Chambers of Los Banos City Hall located at 520 "J" Street. Questions
regarding the above-referenced item may be directed to Stacy Souza Elms, Community
and Economic Development Director, at City Hall or at (209) 827-7000, Ext.133.

All persons are invited to be present at the public hearing. Written and oral testimony is
invited. Notice is hereby further given that if you challenge the above described
Ordinance in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else
raised at the public hearing described in this Notice, or in written correspondence
delivered to the Planning Commission at, or prior to, the public hearing per Government
Code Section 65009.

Additional information may be obtained from Community & Economic Development
Department at 520 J Street, Los Banos, California. In compliance with the Americans
with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please
contact the Office of the City Clerk at (209) 827-7000. Notification at least 72 hours
prior to the public hearing will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to
allow participation at this hearing

THE CITY OF LOS BANOS

Stacy Souza Elms
Community and Economic Development Director


